
 

Goshen Public Library and Historical Society Board of 

Trustees Regular Meeting of January 13, 2025 

(DRAFT until Accepted in meeting) 

AGENDA 

 

I. Call to order - 7:00 pm 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 

III. Review and Approve Agenda 

[Action item] RESOLVED that the Board approve the Agenda as presented. 

IV. Recognition of Former Trustee Robert Quinn. 

 

V. Privilege of the floor 

 

VI. Approval of the regular Board minutes of December 9, 2024.  

[Action item] RESOLVED that the Board approve the regular minutes of December 9, 2024. 

VII. Personnel Appointments 

Appoint Krystal Coleman to part time library assistant. (Youth Services) 

Appoint Charles DeYoe to interim Director of IT 

Appoint Amber Kirkwood to interim Director of Adult Services/Youth Services Programming 

 

VIII. Finances 

a. Financial report for December 2024 – Jack Denman, Finance 

[Action item] RESOLVED to approve the financial report for December 2024 as presented. 

b. Warrant Schedule for December 2024 

[Action item] RESOLVED to approve the December 2024 warrant schedule as presented. 

IX. Director’s Report—Joslyn Bowling Dixon, Interim Library Director 

 

X. Adoption of Policy for Notification of Data Breaches 

 

XI. Action Item – Webmaster Contractor 

 

 



XII. Revisit holiday calendar 

 

XIII. SRI Fire & Security Proposal  

 

XIV. Committee Reports 

a. Standing Committees 

i. Physical Resources Committee - None 

ii. Community Resources Committe - None 

iii. Human Resources – None 

iv. Sunshine Committee - None 

b. Ad Hoc Committee 

i. Historical Society Committee 

ii. Bylaws Committee 

 

XV. Reports from Partner Groups 

a. Friends Liaison—Trustee Jim Langlois 

b. Junior Friends Liaison 

 

XVI. Executive Session for the Purpose of Discussing Personnel Matters 

[Action item] RESOLVED that the Board enter executive session 

XVII. Privilege of the floor 

 

XVIII. Report of Trustee Continuing Education Credits 

 

Next Regular Meeting: January 13, 2025 @ 7:00 pm. 

 

Privilege of the Floor 

Pursuant to Article II, Section 6 of the bylaws of the Goshen Public Library and Historical Society, any 

member of the public, present at the meeting, may speak during privilege of the floor. The Chair of the 

meeting shall designate a maximum amount of time for privilege of the floor in order to run the meeting 

in an efficient manner. Comments may not personally denigrate staff or Board members. Attendees’ 

behavior shall be held to the Library Rules of Conduct. 

 

Members of the public wishing to speak will be recognized by the Chair and be asked to stand, state 

their name and address for the record, and face the Board when making their comments. 

 



Goshen Public Library and Historical Society Board of Trustees

Regular Meeting of December 9th, 2024

DRAFT

I. Call to order
A regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Goshen Public Library & Historical Society 
(GPLHS) was called to order by President Tina Fortugno at 7:01p.m. on Monday, December 9th, 
2024

Attendance:
Board members present: Emily Collado Bob Quinn, Michael Panzer, Robert Karchawer, 
Jim Langlois
Also in attendance: Jack Denman, Finance Manager; Joslyn Bowling Dixon, Interim 
Library Director; Emelia Estep, Clerk of the Board.
Absent: Tina Fortugno, Heather LaBruna

II. Pledge of Allegiance

III. Review and Approve Agenda
[Action item] RESOLVED that the Board approve the Agenda
Motion: Trustee Robert Karchawer. Seconded by: Trustee Bob Quinn (Approved 5-0-0)

IV. Presentation on Local History Journal– Member of the Local History Committee
James Kuroski presented the Local History Committee’s plan for the Local History Journal
project, including how it will be distributed, and the involvement of the Friends Group.
[Action Item] RESOLVED that the Board approve the Local History Committee’s plan for the
Journal as described.
Motion: Trustee Jim Langlois. Seconded by: Trustee Michael Panzer (Approved 5-0-0)

VI. Approval of the regular Board minutes of November 11, 2024 and the special Board meeting
minutes November 25, 2024.

[Action item] RESOLVED that the Board approve the minutes of November 11, 2024 
and the special Board meeting minutes November 25, 2024.



Motion: Trustee Jim Langlois. Seconded by: Trustee Robert Karchawer. (Approved 
5-0-0)

VII. Finances
Finance Manager Jack Denman reported that the library has received the second check which 
represents 40% of the total tax levy from the school. As a whole, the library has received 90% of 
the tax levy. It was noted that the library paid Automated Logic, which receives bi-annual 
payments. The next payment should be in May or June 2025. A question was raised as to what 
else pertains to line 49- Building services. Finance Manager Denman explained that Bill Co. and 
the sprinkler system are also on line 49. The board asked if the line could be broken down further 
or added as an addendum. The budget should be on track to be under for the year. Finance 
Manager Denman deposited $600,000 into the NYLAF account from the Key account. There is 
no word on when the library can expect the PILOT funds to come in. The library has not 
received a response from True Green regarding acreage and pesticides. Members of the Board 
requested that the procedures for bills be evaluated. Trustee Michael Panzer volunteered to stop 
in weekly for bills in order to avoid bills being paid without the Board looking at them first, 
without risking late fees. There was also a suggestion that some bills be approved by the Director 
and receive retroactive Board approval as needed.

a. Financial report for October 2024 – Jack Denman, Finance
[Action item] RESOLVED to approve the financial report for November 2024 as presented.
Motion: Trustee Michael Panzer. Seconded by: Trustee Jim Langlois (Approved 5-0-0)
b. Warrant Schedule for October 2024
[Action item] RESOLVED to approve the November 2024 warrant schedule as presented.
 Motion: Trustee Jim Langlois. Seconded by: Trustee Michael Panzer (Approved 5-0-0)

VIII. Discussion of the Battle of Minisink Monument.
Interim Director Bowling Dixon reported to the Board that after much consideration, the Battle 
of Minisink Monument will no longer be moved in front of the Donor wall. The new plan for the 
monument is to move it to the end of the stairs. Some concerns regarding protecting the 
monument were discussed. Interim Director Bowling Dixon invited the members of the Board to 
attend an upcoming meeting with the movers.

IX. Director’s Report—Joslyn Bowling Dixon, Interim Library Director
Interim Library Director Bowling Dixon discussed statistics for the library and her report. 
Interim Director Bowling Dixon would like to give a year in review to the Board and Patrons. 
Interim Director Bowling Dixon gave an overview of the plans she has made at the Board’s 
request for the Bullet Grant. She discussed using the small meeting room instead of the YA room 
for the new Tech Lab. Her proposal meets all three points of the grant letter.
[Action Item] RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees approve expenditure from the Bullet Grant 



for the Tech Lab as presented by the Interim Director to the Board.
Motion: Trustee Jim Langlois. Seconded: Trustee Robert Karchawer. (Approved 5-0-0)

X. SRI Fire & Security Proposal.
Interim Director Bowling Dixon gave an overview of the proposal given to the library by SRI 
Fire & Security after their fire inspection. The Board requested that a second opinion of what in 
the plan is needed be procured, as well as a breakdown of the costs associated with the proposal. 
The Board requested that Interim Director Joslyn Bowling Dixon check how much the library 
paid for the same service the last time they inspected the library. The Board also suggested 
asking the local fire department to come for another inspection. Questions the Board would like 
answered are: What is a water gauge? How many are there? Do they actually need to be 
replaced? How often is this inspection? Are these inspections yearly?

XI. Approval of 2025 Holidays
[Action Item] RESOLVED that the Board approve a calendar for 2025 with holidays and 
closings which mirror the 2024 calendar, subject to change pending negotiations.
Motion: Trustee Michael Panzer. Seconded: Trustee Robert Karchawer. (Approved 5-0-0)

XII. Approval of Calendar of Events for 2025
[Action Item] RESOLVED that the Board approve 2025 Vote related dates as presented.
Motion: Trustee Jim Langlois. Seconded: Trustee Robert Karchawer. (Approved 5-0-0)

XIII.  Appointment of Budget Committee
Trustees Emily Collado and Jim Langlois volunteered to be on the Budget Committee.

XIV. Committee Reports
a. Standing Committees

i. Physical Resources Committee - None
ii. Community Resources Committee - None
iii. Human Resources – None
iv. Sunshine Committee - None

b. Ad Hoc Committee
i. Historical Society Committee- Nothing Further. Please see item IV. Presentation on 

Local History Journal
ii. Bylaws Committee

XII. Reports from Partner Groups
a. Friends Liaison—Trustee Jim Langlois
The Friends Group will be having another speaker in March 2025.



Junior Friends Liaison—Trustee Tina Fortugno
Trustee Tina Fortuno reported in absentia that the Jr. Friends Group the Junior Friends Group had 
a lovely time giving out books at the tree lighting ceremony in town. The hope to have a trivia 
and/or open mic night in 2025.

XVII. Reorganization of Board Governance.
Trustee Bob Quinn announced his intentions to resign from the Goshen Public Library & 
Historical Society Board of Trustees effective December 31st. He has expressed that he is 
interested in remaining on the Historical Committee. Trustee Michael Panzer has offered to take 
over as Auditor of Bills as of now.
[Action Item] RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees accept Trustee Bob Quinn’s Resignation 
effective December 31st, 2024.
Motion: Trustee Jim Langlois. Seconded: Trustee Michael Panzer. (Approved 5-0-0)

[Action Item] RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees accept Trustee Michael Panzer as Auditor 
of Bills Effective December 9th, 2024.
Motion: Trustee Robert Karchawer. Seconded: Trustee Bob Quinn. (Approved 5-0-0)

XVI. Executive Session for the Purpose of Discussing Personnel Matters
[Action item] RESOLVED that the Board enter executive session at 9:25pm
 Motion: Trustee Michael Panzer. Seconded by: Trustee Jim Langlois. (Approved 5-0-0)

[Action item] RESOLVED that the Board exit executive session at 10:46pm.
Motion: Trustee Robert Karchawer. Seconded by: Trustee Jim Langlois. (Approved 5-0-0)

[Action item] RESOLVED that the Board end the meeting of December 9th, 2024 at 10:46pm
Motion: Trustee Robert Karchawer Seconded by: Trustee Bob Quinn (Approved 5-0-0)

Next Regular Meeting: Monday, January 13, 2025.

Submitted by: Emelia Estep, Clerk of the Board



 Goshen Public Library and Historical Society

 Statement of Activities
 December 1 - 31, 2024 and  YTD Jul 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

A B C D E F G H I J K L M Q T U

MONTH YEAR TO DATE FULL YEAR FULL YEAR

Dec 24/25 Budget Over/(Under) Bud  24/25 Act YTD YTD Bud Over/(Under) Bud % of Budget  Budget  24/25  Debt  24/25 
% of Budget

Income

Real Property Taxes -                 -                 -                               1,758,617                1,758,617   -                             1,954,019          

Real Property Taxes-Bond -                 -                           -              -                            -                    496,194        0%

PILOT Revenue -                 5,083             (5,083)                          -                           30,500        (30,500)                     0% 61,000              

RCLS Grants -                 417                (417)                             5,350                       2,500          2,850                          5,000                

Other Grants -                 83                  (83)                               -                           500             (500)                           1,000                

Library Charges 419                458                (39)                               1,856                       2,750          (894)                           5,500                

Appropriated Reserve -                 -                 -                               -                           -              -                            40,000              0%

Friends of the GPLHS 775                208                567                              775                          1,250          (475)                          2,500                

Donations -                 -                 -                               -                           -              -                             -                    

Interest Income 5,587             1,000             4,587                           17,497                     6,000          11,497                        12,000              

Total Income 6,781             7,250             (469)                             1,784,095                1,802,117   (18,022)                     99% 2,081,019         496,194        69%

Expense

(Over)/Under Bud (Over)/Under Bud

Total Salaries & Wages 77,500           87,176           9,676                           496,479                   566,646      70,167                       88% 1,133,293         -                44%

Employee Benefits

FICA 4,774             5,405             631                              30,374                     30,073        (301)                          101% 70,264              

Medicare 1,116             1,264             148                              7,024                       6,952          (72)                            101% 16,433              

Worker's Compensation -                 667                667                              3,905                       4,000          95                              98% 8,000                

Unemployment Insurance 111                833                722                              1,435                       5,000          3,565                         29% 10,000              

Disability Insurance (68)                 583                651                              (445)                         3,500          3,945                         -13% 7,000                

Health Insurance 13,661           16,417           2,756                           80,508                     98,500        17,992                       82% 197,000            

Retiree Health Insurance -                 -                               -                           -              -                            0%

Vision Care 102                125                23                                556                          750             194                            74% 1,500                

State Retirement -                 -                 -                               122,527                   102,000      (20,527)                     120% 102,000            

State Retirement-Arrears  -                 -              40,000              

Direct Deposit Fees 248                100                (148)                             1,612                       600             (1,012)                       269% 1,200                

Total Employee Benefits 19,944           25,394           5,450                           247,496                   251,375      3,879                         98% 453,397            -                55%

Library Materials/Services

Books - Adult 977                3,500             2,523                           19,631                     21,000        1,369                         93% 42,000              

Books - Teen 30                  500                470                              561                          3,000          2,439                         19% 6,000                

Books - Juvenile 53                  1,333             1,280                           2,595                       8,000          5,405                         32% 16,000              

Reference Databases -                 358                358                              2,303                       2,150          (153)                          0% 4,300                

Serials -                 667                667                              3,889                       4,000          111                            97% 8,000                

AV -                 333                333                              1,915                       2,000          85                              96% 4,000                

AV - Audio Books -                 333                333                              509                          2,000          1,491                         0% 4,000                

AV - Audio Music -                 83                  83                                -                           500             500                            0% 1,000                

Museum Passes 265                150                (115)                             1,190                       900             (290)                          132% 1,800                

E Content -                 1,583             1,583                           9,415                       9,500          85                              99% 19,000              

Total Library Materials/Services 1,325             8,842             7,517                           42,008                     53,050        11,042                       79% 106,100            -                40%

Building (Over)/Under Bud (Over)/Under Bud

Equipment -                 200                200                              -                           1,200          1,200                         0% 2,400                

Building Repairs/Improvements -                 833                833                              2,365                       5,000          2,635                         47% 10,000              

Utilities 4,351             4,167             (184)                             25,614                     25,000        (614)                          102% 50,000              

Insurance 3,497             3,433             (64)                               21,800                     41,200        19,400                       0% 41,200              

New Building- Generator -                 -                 -                               -                           -              -                            0% -                    



 Goshen Public Library and Historical Society

 Statement of Activities
 December 1 - 31, 2024 and  YTD Jul 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025

2

3

A B C D E F G H I J K L M Q T U

Dec 24/25 Budget Over/(Under) Bud  24/25 Act YTD YTD Bud Over/(Under) Bud % of Budget  Budget  24/25  Debt  24/25 
% of Budget

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

83
84

85

86

87

88
8995

101

Building Services 12,287           3,833             (8,454)                          29,208                     23,000        (6,208)                       127% 46,000              

Custodial Services 767                500                (267)                             3,790                       3,000          (790)                          126% 6,000                

Total Building 20,902           12,967           (7,935)                          82,777                     98,400        15,623                       84% 155,600            -                53%

Technology

IT Services -                 3,850             3,850                           23,785                     23,100        (685)                           46,200              

Computer Hardware 189                292                103                              1,696                       1,750          54                              97% 3,500                

Computer Software -                 417                417                              1,131                       2,500          1,369                         45% 5,000                

ILS -                 1,830             1,830                           9,385                       10,980        1,595                         85% 21,960              

Total Electronic Resources 189                6,388             6,199                           35,997                     38,330        2,333                         94% 76,660              -                47%

Programs/Public Relations

Newsletter, Program Flyers 132                333                201                              944                          2,000          1,056                         47% 4,000                

Programs - Adult 396                1,500             1,104                           9,665                       9,000          7,500                         129% 18,000              

Programs-Community Dev -                 1,167             1,167                           5,000                       7,000          5,833                         86% 14,000              

Local History 376                417                41                                847                          2,500          2,083                         0% 5,000                

Programs - Juvenile -                 1,500             1,500                           1,219                       9,000          7,500                         16% 18,000              

Programs - Teen -                 417                417                              295                          2,500          2,083                         14% 5,000                

Total Programs/Public Relations 904                5,333             4,429                           17,970                     32,000        26,056                       56% 64,000              -                28%

Administrative Expenses

Telephone 948                833                (115)                             5,177                       5,000          (177)                          104% 10,000              

Printing -                 500                500                              2,212                       3,000          788                            74% 6,000                

Postage -                 208                208                              975                          1,250          275                            78% 2,500                

Office Equipment Maintenance -                 83                  83                                -                           500             500                            0% 1,000                

Professional Services -                 -                 -                               -                           -              -                             -                    

Legal 2,382             1,000             (1,382)                          14,720                     6,000          (8,720)                       12,000              

CSEA Matters -                 1,667             1,667                           5,154                       10,000        4,846                         20,000              

Other Prof Services 14,446           208                (14,238)                        75,947                     1,250          (74,697)                     2,500                

Accounting 700                750                50                                4,450                       4,500          50                              9,000                

Library Supplies 464                931                467                              4,400                       5,585          1,185                         79% 11,169              

Copier Lease 640                275                (365)                             4,022                       1,650          (2,372)                       0% 3,300                

Continuing Education 71                  417                346                              3,310                       2,500          (810)                          132% 5,000                

Election -                 250                250                              -                           1,500          1,500                         0% 3,000                

Membership Dues -                 208                208                              713                          1,250          537                            57% 2,500                

Miscellaneous Expense -                 167                167                              -                           1,000          1,000                         0% 2,000                

Total Admin  Expenses 19,651           7,497             (12,154)                        121,080                   44,985        (76,096)                     269% 89,969              -                135%

Other Interest Exp -                           -                            2,000                

 Bond  Interest Exp -                 -                 -                               -                           -              -                            256,194        

Bond Principal -                           -              -                            240,000        

Total Expense 140,415         153,598         13,183                         1,043,807                1,084,786   40,979                       96% 2,081,019         496,194        41%  

Total Income 6,781             7,250             (469)                             1,784,095                1,802,117   (18,022)                      2,081,019         496,194        69%

Net Ordinary Income (133,634)        (146,348)        12,714                         740,288                   717,332      22,957                        -                    -                

NO CAPITAL ACTIVITY 

 



Goshen Public Library and Historical Society

 Balance Sheet

General Fund
 As of December 31, 2024

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

A B C D E F G K

31-Dec-24

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

Cash - Key - Current year funds 107,723.46                     

    

Total Key Balance 107,723.46                     

NYLAF 1,491,292.72                   

Cash - Orange County Trust 5,407.94                         

Petty Cash 99.25                              

Total Checking/Savings 1,604,523.37                  

 

  

  

Total Current Assets 1,604,523.37                  

TOTAL ASSETS 1,604,523.37$                

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 40,282.47                       

Accrued Expenses -                                  

Real Property Tax Advance .

Payroll Liabilities 4,993.10                         

Total Other Current Liabilities 45,275.57                       

Total Liabilities 45,275.57                       

  

Equity (Total Assets less Total Liabilities) 1,559,247.80                  

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,604,523.37$                 

 



Goshen Public Library & Historical Society

Statement of Cash Position

Capital Fund at 12/31/24

Cash accounts Balance

  

Community Foundation

of Orange & Sullivan (CFOS) 61,637.14              

Total cash available 61,637.14$            

NO CAPITAL ACTIVITY  



Director’s Report  

Six Month Check In 

As I close in on my six months here at Goshen, I thought January 
would be a suitable time to review my progress to date on the Open 
Matters items presented to me when I first began in July 2024. 

Original Open Matter: Assemblyman Brian Mahr Grant 

The office called on May 14 to confirm we have received the $20K in 
funds. Someone needs to call Damen at 518.455.4821 and tell him 
we got the funds and due to some delays (?) we will be 
implementing later this summer.  _______ has been working on this 
with me.  He is stretched too thin. The website should launch at the 
end of May freeing him up to finalize the tech lab. A letter of 
appreciation similar to what was sent to Senator Skoufis (see 
February board package) has to be sent to him. If don’t spend it by 
June 30 – create a reserve to bring over the $27,500 for FY2025.  

Progress to Date: Confirmed receipt of Bullet Grant funds (received 
March 2024), and funds are available to use. In December 2024,   I 
presented a revamped purchase plan and budget to make more 
Tech Lab maker space focused and proposed that the lab be located 
in the current small meeting room on the first floor. Revamped plan 
and location for Tech Lab approved by board at December 2024 
meeting.   

Reviewed responsibilities of IT Director and concurred that some 
areas too broad of reach for one person/department to manage.  
With board approval, moved to contract out our webpage 
maintenance, review of potential contractors currently in progress. 
In addition, the contractor operations piece was rehomed to 
Facilities.  With board approval and working with HR,  installed an 



Interim IT Director as we tweak and update the position going 
forward. 

 

Original Open Matter: Technology Contract with RCLS 

Library is being asked to renew for year 3 of a 5 year contract. The 
contract can be reduced by 50% this year, but need to alert RCLS to 
this by June. Nyack PL will explain how they transitioned from full 
service to partial service. Determination has to be made if new tech 
lab equipment will come under this contract.  

Progress to Date: The updated plan is to continue our IT contract 
with RCLS. The IT support, consortium purchase discounts, 
scheduled hardware updates, e-rate discounts, and training 
opportunities make the investment in the IT contract with RCLS 
worthwhile and beneficial relative to the cost. The tech lab 
equipment will not be under the RCLS IT contract. It was purchased 
with grant funds which would not include or require a contracted 
warranty (such as an RCLS IT contract) which would provide 
replacements, repairsor upgrades. 

 

Original Open Matter: HVAC Contracts  

Automated Logic (September contract) and Armistead 
(September?) have to be re-upped. Consider whether you want to go 
back to CR Wolfe instead of Armistead. 

 

Progress to Date: Reviewed options and recommended continuing 
with Armistead.  Board approved Armistead contract at October 
2024 meeting.  



 

 

 

Original Open Matter: SAMS GRANT  

Final affidavit has to be prepared, approved by Board, signed by 
President and submitted. There is still a balance of $1200, ie, funds 
that have to be spent. There is one potential Generac bill still 
outstanding. The affidavit is a change in the process. We no longer 
have to submit copies of all the supporting documentation. For 
example, pictures of blank walls, now pictures of security cameras. 
There is a spreadsheet that shows the expenditures to date on the 
top of the stack of grant paperwork on my desk.  

 

Progress to date: Will review with Finance to determine if there are 
still outstanding bills.  I was able to work with previous  IT Director to 
get generator contractor to return to the library free of charge to 
complete needed wiring repairs.  With board approval, set aside half 
day in October 2024 to close the library so that power could be shut 
down, repair could be completed, power rebooted, and repairs 
tested.  The test was a success, and the generator has been in 
working order ever since the day of the repair.  Working with the 
Facilities Manager we have also established a weekly test run of the 
generator to ensure that it continues to be ready to function as 
expected when needed.  

 

Original Open Matter: LANDSCAPING 



The work should be bid out to prevailing wage contractors. We have 
been using ___without a contract. He doesn’t pay prevailing wage. I 
was going to get some teen volunteers and weed the gardens as he 
doesn’t do weeding.    

Progress to Date:  In August, working with our custodian, reviewed 3 
landscape contractors with established prevailing wage practices. 
Presented options at August board meeting;  recommended local 
contractor Billco. Scheduled end of summer library campus clean 
up, then pesented  Billco’s proposed landscaping contract, at 
September Board meeting to include board requests of no 
chemicals to be used in weeding and leaf pick up. Board approved 
moving forward with Billco contract at the October 2024 meeting. 

 

Original Open Matter: CSEA 

All correspondence is in the bottom drawer of my desk near the 
window.  

Progress to Date: working with Board Contract Negotiation Team 
and union representatives, began contract negotiations in July 2024.  
Negotiations are ongoing.  

 

 

Original Open Matter: PERSONNEL 

Raises and reviews, if doing, should be starting in order to finish by 
June 30. There is a spreadsheet with forecasted raises. I’ll send it to 
Bill.   

----------- has to be relocated out of the admin office due to her page 
status.  



Progress to Date: 

Salaries will be determined when new union contract is ratified. In 
the interim, working with HR and Finance and with board approval, I 
have been able to resolve some pay equity issues, revamped the 
organizational chart, tweaked titles and responsibilities, and have 
been able to provide some modest raises as appropriate.  Drawing 
on my prior experiences in a union environment, I recalled that the 
library would be allowed to work an employee out of class on a 
temporary basis with appropriate compensation and we were able 
to retain the employee in an interim capacity until the position was 
permanently filed.  

Original Open Matter: CUBESMART STORAGE UNIT

The back room with the water heater was cleaned out in anticipation 
of moving back the items stored offsite at $400 a month at 
CubeSmart. There is a folder on Sandra’s desk labeled CubeSmart. 
In it is a list of items stored in the rental storage unit. Obviously the 
shelving and replacement carpet and ceiling tiles (and similar) 
building part should be retained. But we are also storing caulk and 5 
year old paint and other things that should be sorted to see if worth 
the money to store. The Library has been paying for this unit for at 
least 3 years – when if the children’s storage had been consolidated 
and cleaned up this could have been an avoided expense.  

Progress to Date: Reviewed with custodian.  Will have update on 
next steps at the February 2025 board meeting.  



MEMO 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

RCLS 

Directors 

Stephen Hoefer, Chief Financial Officer 

2024 Senate Bullet Aid 

12/31/24 

RAMAPO 

CATSKILL 

LIBRARY 

SYSTEM 

J 

The enclosed check represents payment for 2024 Senate Bullet Aid. These funds 

should be used to expand Youth Programming. Please deposit the check as soon as 

possible. 

This payment must be included in the Annual Report on line 11.5, "Additional 

State Aid received from System". 

• Add a note to indicate "2024 Senate Bullet Aid"

Please share this with the person responsible for completing the financial sections of the 

annual report. 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call. 

Thank you. 

619 Route 17M, Middletown, NY 10940 845.243.3747 www.rcls.org 





Memorandum 

To:   Board of Trustees 

From: Ruth Mallard, Adult Services & Charles DeYoe, Adult Programming 

Date:  January 8, 2024 

Re:  Adult Services Department November 2024 report 

 
 

REFERENCE SERVICES 

The Adult Services staff answered over 400 questions this past December. We helped patrons 

print and scan documents and assisted with technology questions. December is often a slow 

month, but we still fielded questions ranging from nutrition to classical mythology, astronomy 

to military history. Frieda McFadden and other thrillers are perennially popular, but patrons 

also look for romances, literary fiction and nonfiction works. We helped patrons with self-

guided learning through Great Courses sets, and helped them find test prep materials to 

advance their education and careers. 

Select Adult Collections Circulation 2024 2023

New Fiction 524 558

New Nonfiction 176 147

Fiction 952 786

Nonfiction 613 544

Large Print 391 340

Audiobook 81 135

DVDs 347 527

Videogames 108 118

Puzzles & Board Games 43 27

Museum Passes 4 7

 

 



Programming report – December 2024 to January 10, 2025 

December is typically a slower month in public libraries as most patrons are busy preparing for 

the holidays. As such, most of the programs in December were more low-key than in previous months. 

Our two biggest programs were holiday music concerts: one from Hudson Valley Enchanted Winds and 

another from the Goshen High School Music Department. The Hudson Valley Enchanted Winds concert 

on 12/11 at 3:00pm drew a modest crowd of 16 attendees, but the performers were impressed that 

audience included parents with children as they typically don’t get children in the audience. 

The Goshen High School Music Department performed two concerts on December 18, one at 

11:00 which had 39 attendees and another at 1:00 which had 20. The High School was extremely 

grateful for allowing them to perform twice – initially they were going to only perform once as they 

travelled around Goshen to play at different places, but the venue they had planned after us ended up 

not working out. I think this was a great example of the library supporting the school and bringing 

students together with the community at large. 

 Unfortunately, the poor weather throughout the month of December caused some 

cancellations. The library closed early on 12/20 which caused the cancellation of the writer’s group. It 

seemed like this would have been an especially well-attended meeting but hopefully the writers will be 

back for the January meeting. Our drop-in card making program didn’t draw any attendees but even 

though the library was open, the weather was poor  

 Our extremely laid back “Color & Craft” program had a couple of attendees on December 27 

who seemed to appreciate having a place to just color and draw, away from the hullabaloo that 

surrounds the holidays at home. 

 For January, we’ve started a “Public Domain Celebration” series where we’ll show movies whose 

copyright has recently expired and are now freely available. We’re finally starting to get films from the 

sound era, so these are movies with a broader appeal than what’s entered the public domain in years 

past. We’ll be showing Mickey Mouse cartoons, the first Marx brothers film, the first Hitchcock film, and 

a couple others. It remains to be seen what the response will be, but this is an important way the library 

can spread awareness about intellectual property and multimedia works that can now be shown, 

remade, or used in any way without fear of upsetting a rights holder. 

 We’ve also officially started Horror Book Club, the library’s fourth book club. The first meeting 

was on the smaller side (4 attendees) but everyone was extremely enthusiastic and I expect meetings to 

grow as the year goes on. At the end of the month, we’re starting a Mahjong series aimed at beginners 

interested in learning the game. This has already been shaping up to be extremely popular and should 

serve as the basis for an ongoing Mahjong club going forwards. 





Memorandum 

 

To:   Board of Trustees 

From: Karen Golding, Head of Children’s and Young Adult Services 

Date:  January 3, 2025 

Re:     Young Adult Department December 2024 report 

 

This month we wrapped up our regular monthly Young Adult Programming. Our 

teens had a great time playing board games in our tabletop gaming group and 

decorating votive candle holders in our monthly DIY group. We also wrapped up 

our wildly successful READ to a dog program for the year this month. All of these 

programs will continue in 2025 as we begin to build some continuity in our 

programming schedule. New, special programs will continue to be added 

periodically but I believe that offering continuous monthly programming will result 

in better attendance and engagement.  

 

Plans for the 2025 programming schedule are complete, and we are excited to 

offer many fun programs related to the Game On theme. We will continue to hold 

our monthly board game group, monthly DIY crafting group and biweekly 

chances to read to a dog. In addition, we will be adding a monthly food challenge 

program in 2025. We are looking forward to a fun and exciting start to the new 

year in YA! 

 

We are excited to welcome a new member to our Children’s staff, Krystal 

Coleman, is a new library assistant in Children’s services. Krystal has a broad 

range of experience in art, teaching, technology and working with children. She is 

eager to learn more about library work and is excited to collaborate with the rest 

of the staff in planning and executing programs. I am confident that she will be a 

valuable addition to our staff.  

 

As we close the year I would like to take this opportunity to thank the Board and 

the Director for their support this year. While we experienced some challenges 

this year, I believe that we worked well together and continued to provide the 

best possible service to our patrons. We look forward to continuing to work with 

you in the coming year and to continuing to provide exceptional programming 

and services to our community.  

 

                          



December 2024 Stats 

Memorandum 
To: Board of Trustees 
From: Amber Kirkwood, Director of Youth Programming and Community Engagement 
Re: Youth Services Monthly Report  

December was a slow and snowy month. As we winded down, it was nice to end with a 
bang and enjoy time with our family and friends. We had several programs and passive 
activities that were successful. My Elf Sleigh In was a lot of fun and it was great to 
collaborate with The Goshen Chamber of Commerce and Olivero Realty whom both 
helped in sponsoring the event. The kids had a great time, designing their sleighs, creating 
their Elf name, eating their “Spaghetti n Candy Cupcakes” and having constant refill of 
popcorn throughout the film that our Elfs supplied. I look forward to this being an annual 
holiday event. Speaking of annual events, Lynn had her Cocoa Party where kids were able 
to make their very own, perfect hot chocolate. She provided them with lots of delicious 
flavors and mix in options like peppermint spoons, marshmallows, which provided happy 
kids with warm happy tummies. Holiday Family Groove was also well attended, and 
families of all ages learned some new dance moves and some kids even created their own! 

184 non-program questions,   50 program-related questions, and 22  directional questions 
were answered. 



Program Attendance: 

Storytimes: 
Sensory Storytime  : 
December 7th - 11 

Asynchronous: 
December Scavenger Hunt – 70 

Reading Challenge: 
Winter Bingo – 54 
Fall into Reading - 8 

Specials: 
Elf Sleigh In - 33 
Cocoa Party - 55 
Holiday Groove - 21 

Fetching Reads - R.E.A.D to a Dog : 
December 5th – 8 
December 19th - 15 

Community Engagement:  
Toys for Tots – 76 Toys donated 

Future Plans and Ideas: 

In a few weeks we’ll be starting programming for our theme of “Game On at Goshen”. Our 
first official special program is a Family Puzzle Race, Puzzle Palooza! We are hoping to 
have 10 teams of 5 working together to complete a fun puzzle, first to finish gets a grand 
prize. Though most of our programs center around gaming, I also want to highly feature 
Black History Month and plan on working with Amy, the Goshen Intermediate librarian to 
create a program for 100 Days of School. I'm really enjoying collaborating with the 
community as this is one that loves to participate and has a lot to offer. Lynn is having her 
well attended STEM program on Mondays and taken over Wee Read, a storytime for babies. 
Rosa is having great success with her Sensory Storytime which is now consistently the first 
Saturday of every month as well as her popular Bilingual Storytime. Kathy is having her 
highly favored Toddletime and decided instead of having two, to try a new program called 
Tunes and Tales. I believe I mentioned before, I already know this will be a hit as Kathy is an 



amazing performer. I'm excited to have beautiful music throughout the Just for Kids area. 
Karen continues to have great success with the Fetching Reads program and has lined up 
several dates and sessions per month for the whole season. Clarisa, a long term part timer 
with us is having a new weekly program centered around Pokemon. She did a great job at 
creating very different focused and fun activities each week. We also have the addition of a 
new employee named Krystal. She is very professional, helpful and kind and we are 
speaking about having her lead programs starting next season. In the meantime, shes been 
very helpful with patrons and creating beautiful decorations for the Just for Kids Area.  

Submitted by Amber R Kirkwood – Director of Children’s Programming and Community 
Engagement 



w w w . G o s h e n p u b l i c l i b r a r y . o r g

k i t t y @ g o s h e n p u b l i c l i b r a r y . o r g

MARKETING & COMMUNICATIOS

Monthly Report Presentation
Board Meeting Date January 13,  2025

D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 2
0

2
4



TABLE OF
CONTENT

SOCIAL MEDIA INSIGHT 
FACEBOOK

THANK YOU

SOCIAL MEDIA INSIGHT 
INSTAGRAM

01 06

02

MONTHLY PROGRAM
DISTRIBUTION

03

PROGRAM CATEGORY
DISTRIBUTION

04

SOCIAL MEDIA INSIGHT05



71%

content interaction up 71.6%

2 . 9 K  F O L L O W E R S

1 2 . 9 K  F O L L O W E R S

3 . 9 K  P A G E  R E A C H

8 . 4 K  P A G E  R E A C H

1 5 . 5 k  v i e w s

4 . 6 k  v i e w s

1 2  p o s t s

3 1  p o s t s

October 2024

December 2024

SOCIAL MEDIA INSIGHT 
FACEBOOK

1 2 4  C O N T E N T  I N T E R A C T I O N

5 6 8  C O N T E N T  I N T E R A C T I O N

8  p o s t  i n t e r a c t i o n

1 1  p o s t  i n t e r a c t i o n



79%

content interaction up 79.4%

1 . 3 K  F O L L O W E R S

1 . 3 K  F O L L O W E R S

5 2 2  P A G E  R E A C H

6 4 7  P A G E  R E A C H

1 . 6 k  v i e w s

4 . 6 k  v i e w s

7  p o s t s

2 2  p o s t s

October 2024

December 2024

SOCIAL MEDIA INSIGHT 
INSTGRAM

3 5  C O N T E N T  I N T E R A C T I O N

2 4 4  C O N T E N T  I N T E R A C T I O N

2  p o s t  i n t e r a c t i o n

1 0  p o s t  i n t e r a c t i o n



Actual Attendance
173

Confirmed
Registration 177

Wait List
Registration 13

MONTHLY PROGRAM DISTRIBUTION

Total  Events 54

Cancel led
Registrations 12

Confirmed
Attendance 5

Anticipated
Attendance 20



Adu
lt

Book 
Disc

uss
io

n

ch
ild

re
n's

Perfo
rm

an
ce

s

Te
en P

ro
gra

m

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

PROGRAM CATEGORY DISTRIBUTION

Adult
35.3%

Children's
35.3%

Book Discussion
11.8%

Performance
11.8%

Teen Programs
5.9%



THANK YOU

w w w . G o s h e n p u b l i c l i b r a r y . o r g k i t t y @ g o s h e n p u b l i c l i b r a r y . o r g

THANK YOU

Marketing &
Communications

D E C E M B E R  2 0 2 4
























































	AS Stats Dec 24.pdf
	Reference Services




